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Our Mission
To provide customers high quality natural gas
and water service at a cost consistent
with sound management practices.
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About Us
The Nebraska Legislature created the Metropolitan Utilities District in the early 1900s as a
political subdivision of the State to provide water and natural gas to the metropolitan Omaha
area. The District is governed by a board of seven directors, elected by our customer-owners.
The board usually meets the first Wednesday of every month.
Our first water treatment plant was built near the Missouri River in 1881 by a private
company. Omaha received water and gas service from private water and gas companies
until the citizens of Omaha became dissatisfied with high costs, constant ownership changes
and poor service, and voted to take control and ownership of their utilities. The Legislature
created the Metropolitan Water District in 1913.
Five years later, state senators authorized the City of Omaha, which had acquired the gas
system by condemnation, to assign the responsibility for operation of the gas system to the
Metropolitan Water District. The name was changed to the Metropolitan Utilities District.
Today, we are the only metropolitan utility district in the State of Nebraska. Our strength
lies in being a public utility, customer-owned and governed by a locally-elected board of
directors.
As the fifth largest public gas utility in the United States, we provide a product and service
that is lower in cost than area investor-owned utilities. We serve natural gas to 218,979
customer-owners in Omaha, Bennington, Fort Calhoun, Springfield, Yutan, and 85 percent
of Bellevue.
We also provide safe drinking water to 203,230 customer-owners in Omaha, Bellevue,
Bennington, Carter Lake, LaVista, Ralston, Waterloo and the Papio-Missouri Natural
Resources District (which supplies water to Fort Calhoun). In addition, we maintain 28,000
water hydrants throughout our service area for fire protection.
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Board of Directors
Officers
Senior Vice-Presidents
Operations: Scott L. Keep, 1980
General Counsel: Ronald E. Bucher, 1992
Chief Information Officer: Mark E.
Doyle, 2011
Chief Financial Officer: Debra A.
Schneider, 2011

Tim Cavanaugh

Chairman
Chief Deputy, Douglas Co.
Treasurer’s Office; retired
Captain, Omaha Police
Dept.; appointed 1999;
elected 2002; re-elected
2008 (13 years)

Amy Lindsay

Vice-Chairperson
Independent Consultant
Elected 2008 (4 years)

James P. Begley

Compensation Manager,
City of Omaha
Elected 2012 (1 year)

Vice-Presidents
Water Operations: Joel G. Christensen,
1975
Engineering & Construction:
Ronald K. Reisner, 1981
Rates, Regulatory Affairs & Revenues:
Rhonda S. Chantry, 1983
Gas Operations: James J. Knight,1990
Interim, Customer Services: Stephanie
Mueller, 1990
Safety & Security: Peter H. Neddo, 1992
Purchasing: James B. Goodwin, 1995
Human Resources: Patrick L. Tripp, 2004
IT Infrastructure: Bruce G. Burton, 2007

Thomas F. Dowd

Senior Partner
Dowd, Howard & Corrigan
Elected 1974; re-elected
1980, 1986, 1996, 2002,
2008 (34 years)

Stephen R. Patterson
Investment Advisor
Lutz Financial
Appointed 2011 (2 years)
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David J. Friend

Director, Public Safety
Metropolitan Community
College; elected 2000;
re-elected 2006, 2012
(12 years)

Douglas R. Clark

President and Secretary
(11 years)

Jack A. Frost

Retired, Real Estate
Elected 1986; re-elected
1992, 1998, 2004, 2010
(26 years)

Interim, IT Business Systems: Raied N.
Stanley, 2009
Accounting: Joseph J. Schaffart, 2013

Internal Auditor
J.W. Tiarks, 2000

Statistical Highlights
Years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

2012

2011

2010

Water Department
Number of customers (December)
Sales (thousand gallons)
Operating revenues, net

$

Operating expenses
Operating Income (loss)

203,230

201,580

200,491

35,524,909

29,398,293

29,547,818

110,229,155

$

80,414,733

85,421,583

$

76,799,701

70,551,075
80,645,396

$

29,814,422

$

8,621,882

$

(10,094,321)

Plant additions and replacements, net

$

39,984,373

$

22,896,952

$

18,343,168

Plant in service

$

928,196,903

$

892,749,465

$

878,877,031

Miles of mains
Average daily pumpage (thousand gallons)

2,854

2,848

2,841

103,681

86,320

87,942

218,979

217,103

216,153

22,699,000

26,587,000

27,539,000

4,929,000

5,444,000

5,281,000

27,628,000

32,031,000

32,820,000

Gas Department
Number of customers (December)
Sales (MCF):
Firm
Interruptible
Total
Operating revenues, net

$

Cost of gas sold

182,554,766

$

$

248,199,407

148,717,613

175,436,541

$

58,413,913

$

63,637,966

65,005,230

$

19,164,942

$

14,113,731

$

7,757,636

Plant additions and replacements, net

$

41,439,324

$

32,670,583

$

33,410,553

Plant in service

$

459,496,760

$

436,349,301

$

405,053,570

Other operating expenses
Operating income

Miles of mains
Average daily sendout (MCF)
Number of active employees water and gas
combined

104,975,911

226,469,310

2,772

2,761

2,752

75,682

87,741

88,747

828

859

852
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Report to Customers
A Century of Service
The Nebraska Legislature formed the Metropolitan Water District effective July 23, 1913. We
plan to celebrate this important milestone throughout the year with our customer-owners and
the community. On behalf of employees and board members, past and present, thank you for
being a part of our 100-year history!
In 2012, the District continued to make progress in strengthening our financial position as we
look forward to and prepare for the next century of service to our customer-owners.

Water Operations
Water Operations saw a year of record-breaking demand primarily driven by a hot, dry
summer. Water revenues were $11.9 million over budget and $24.8 million higher than in
2011. Rate increases from 2011 and 2012 accounted for $10 million of the increase in revenues
as compared to 2011, while record drought conditions accounted for the remaining $14.8
million increase in revenues.
Over the last three years, Water Operations experienced an improvement in operating
income, from a loss of $10.1 million in 2010 to an operating income of $8.6 million in 2011
and $29.8 million in 2012. In addition, net cash from operations increased from $9.9 million
in 2010 to $18.7 million in 2011 and $44.4 million in 2012. These funds are then used for
capital improvements and infrastructure expenditures as well as to service long-term debt
requirements.
The District’s debt service coverage ratio for the 2006 water revenue bonds, which require
charges and assessments collected to exceed 1.2 times the debt service costs, saw a dramatic
turnaround – from a “0.67 times” non-compliance calculation in 2010 to full compliance
coverage of “1.91 times” in 2011 and “3.62 times” in 2012.
The improved financial position allowed the District to issue $40.7 million in long term
revenue bonds in December 2012 at favorable interest rates; the proceeds from the bonds will
be used to fund regulatory mandated projects for the Platte South Water Treatment Plant and
the Florence Water Treatment Plant’s capital improvement plan.

Water Pumpage Records Set in 2012
in million gallons (MG)
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Record

Previous		New

Annual

35,443 (2002)

37,849 (2012)

Monthly

5,494 (July 2007)

6,022 (July 2012)

Daily Peak

223 (June 25, 1988)

224 (July 23, 2012)

Regulatory Projects Underway at Water Treatment Facilities
In late fall, the Florence Plant was taken out of service for the first time since the facility
opened in 1889, without disrupting water delivery to our customer-owners. Our Platte South
and Platte West plants continued to provide water to the District’s system, demonstrating the
value of the “Triangle of Reliability” to the metro Omaha area.
During the extended outage at the Florence Plant, we placed in service a $5.9 million carbon
dioxide feed facility. This project will help reduce disinfection byproducts through additional
softening and recarbonation treatment. The District also completed construction of a $2.1
million surge and backwash tank, which will replace the filter plant backwash tank and allow
us to operate the plant while we renovate the finished water basin and connecting conduits.
The District completed another regulatory-driven project at the Platte South Plant, placing
into service an equalization basin and two 5-mile pipelines to the Missouri River. The $13.2
million project allows the District
to discontinue discharging lime
residuals to the Platte River via
Zweibel Creek.
We reconditioned, sandblasted and
painted the north upflow basins
at the Platte South facility and
completed the south half of the
plant in 2013. The total project cost
approximately $1.5 million.
In 2013, the Platte South Plant went
into a six-week outage to complete
a $2.5 million project to replace
its Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition system. This is the first
facility to update its control system
as part of a 10-year District-wide
plan.
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Gas Operations
While the hotter weather helped water revenues, the second warmest year on record was
tough on natural gas sales. The Gas Department was nearly $10 million short to budget,
however one-time revenue items helped offset the losses, including a $1.4 million land sale
and $6.4 million in revenues from the Central Plains Energy Project (CPEP). The year ended
with net operating revenues (after the cost of gas) of $77.6 million, virtually flat compared to
$77.8 million in 2011.

Natural Gas Fleets
In 2012, the District sold
177,318 gasoline gallon
equivalents of compressed
natural gas (CNG) valued
at $315,770 at its two public
CNG stations. Our fleet
now has 145 CNG vehicles,
including service vans, cube
vans, Honda Civics, pickup
trucks, medium-duty service
trucks and Freightliner crew
and dump trucks.
The District worked with
Backlund Plumbing,
leveraging grant funds, to help
Backlund purchase 11 service vans and two dump trucks. The Omaha-based company plans
to add more CNG vehicles to its fleet in 2013.
Happy Cab had 58 taxicabs running on natural gas by the end of 2012. Other organizations
adding CNG fleet vehicles included: Eastern Nebraska Human Services Agency vans,
Metropolitan Community College police vehicles and service van, and the City of Omaha
maintenance van.
The District applied for a $749,500 Nebraska Environmental Trust (NET) Grant to further
develop fleets in the metro area. The NET board officially awarded the grant to the District in
April 2013.
We signed an agreement to sell liquefied natural gas (LNG) to Clean Energy Fuels Corp., the
largest provider of natural gas fuel for transportation in North America and a global leader in
the expanding natural gas vehicle market.
As part of the 15-year contract, Clean Energy is building a $2 million truck loading facility at
the District’s LNG Plant at 117th and Fort Streets. Construction is expected to be complete
by the fall of 2013. Clean Energy will be the exclusive purchaser of this fuel for transportation
use within a 200-mile radius. The partnership allows the District to enter the LNG fuel market
and realize additional revenue from our LNG storage facility.

8

Infrastructure Replacement Program
The District charges customers a Gas and Water Infrastructure replacement fee each month
on their bills. These fees are used to fund the replacement of our aged cast iron gas and water
mains to ensure long-term safety and reliability. In 2012, we accelerated our plan, replacing
19.6 miles of natural gas pipes
and 9.3 miles of water pipes.
By making these improvements
sooner rather than later, we’ll
reduce long-term replacement
and repair costs to our customers.
In the coming years, the District
will replace nearly 500 miles of
cast iron gas mains and more
than 1,200 miles of cast iron
water mains.
In 2012, we expended
$23.4 million related to the
Infrastructure Replacement
Program; the District plans to
spend $24.6 million in 2013.
We continue to coordinate
infrastructure replacement
work with the City of Omaha
to save money and minimize
inconvenience to customers.

Safety
In 2012, the District continued its proactive inspection program to check sewer lines for cross
bores, where one utility line is bored through another. We performed 6,931 sewer lateral
inspections and found 70 cross bores. To date, we have discovered and repaired more than
100 cross bores since the program began in 2011.
Our employees had fewer injuries and accidents in 2012. The District recorded 20 percent
fewer employee injuries and a 15-percent reduction in vehicle accidents, compared to 2011. We
completed a District-wide safety assessment and a task force of employees is working on issues
for improvement. Water and Gas Operations received safety awards at the annual National
Safety Council Summit, and Nebraska Governor Dave Heineman presented the District with a
100-percent seat belt compliance award for the “Click It, Don’t Risk It” program.
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Improving Service through Technology
We continued to work on the conversion to SAP’s ® Customer Relationship and Billing
system. The overall goal of the project is to enhance M.U.D.’s customer service system with the
intention of offering an improved customer experience for all interactions with the District.
Specific beneficial outcomes of the project include:
• Reduced call times for our customers, made possible
by providing our customer service agents with more
comprehensive information to respond to questions,
resolve disputes and streamline collections;
• Improved management and communication of
customer usage and financial data for use throughout
the business enterprise;
• The integration of Customer Service, Accounting,
Operations and Field Service processes for greater
efficiencies and improved customer service;
• The establishment of a secure and reliable customer
relationship management system that is easy to use
and upgrade as changes occur in the energy sector.
We successfully implemented the new system June 3, 2013.
To improve customer service access and availability, the
District introduced an Interactive Voice Response system, which allows customers to retrieve
account information and pay their bills 24/7 via an automated phone system.
The District completed a Geographic Information System to capture, manage, analyze and
display all forms of geographically referenced information on our natural gas and water
systems.
The District plans to introduce a newly designed website in summer 2013 which will provide
improved navigation and communication tools for customers. We also have begun to use
social media to improve customer engagement and provide timely messages to the public.
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Community Outreach
Our Employee Speakers Bureau introduced water
mascot “Thirstin” at classroom and community
events to promote the safety and refreshment of tap
water. In 2012, members made 193 presentations
and reached more than 296,000 customers.
The District also joined Partnership 4 Kids, a
mentoring program for Omaha Public Schools
middle and high school students. Five employees
volunteered in the program during the 2012-13
school year.
Employees continued their support of the United
Way of the Midlands, donating more than $73,000
to help social service programs in our community.
Meter Reading employees coordinated their annual
spring golf tournament with $5,000 going to
support the District’s Heat Aid Fund.
The District again participated in the Heartland
Walk for Warmth, in partnership with Black Hills
Energy, Omaha Public Power District, Northern Natural Gas, and other sponsors. The event
raised more than $110,000 for local energy assistance programs.
In January 2013, Jim Begley joined the board of directors for a six-year term. He is
compensation manager for the City of Omaha’s Human Resources Department.
On behalf of our employees and their predecessors, we are proud to be the natural gas and
water utility you and past generations have relied upon for 100 years. We will continue to
work hard to provide you high quality natural gas and water service, and rates that are among
the lowest in the Midwest.

Douglas R. Clark, President		

Timothy W. Cavanaugh, Board Chairman
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METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2012 and 2011

This section presents management’s analysis and overview of the Metropolitan Utilities District’s (the District)
financial condition and activities as of and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. This information
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes to the financial statements.
Overview of Financial Statements
Management’s discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the financial statements and supplementary
information. The financial statements report information about the District using accrual accounting.
The statement of net position presents information on the District’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of the District’s financial position.
The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents information on how the District’s net
position changed during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future periods.
The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are necessary to
understand material data provided in the financial statements. The notes begin on page 14.
Financial Highlights
The District’s overall financial position and results of operations for the current and prior year are summarized
below. This information is derived from the financial statements and records of the District:
Gas Department

2012
Sales, volume sold – DTH:
Firm gas sales
Interruptible gas sales
Total gas sales
Degree days
Customers (at December 31):
Firm customers
Interruptible customers

2011

22,699,082
4,928,453

82%
18

26,587,086
5,444,382

83%
17

27,627,535

100%

32,031,468

100%

4,550

6,035

218,951
28

217,076
27

218,979

217,103

Gas volumes sold in 2012 decreased 4,403,933 DTH, or 13.8%, from 2011 due to warmer winter weather, as
evidenced by the 24.6% decrease in the number of degree days. There was an increase in firm gas customers in
2012 of 1,875, or 0.9%; there was an increase of one interruptible gas customer.
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METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2012 and 2011

Gas volumes sold in 2011 decreased 788,624 DTH, or 2.4%, from 2010 due to warmer winter weather. There
was an increase in firm gas customers in 2011 of 953 or 0.4%. There was a decrease of three interruptible gas
customers. One of these converted to firm and the other two were the result of discontinuance of operations.
Gas Department Summary of Results of Operations
2012
Operating revenues:
Firm and interruptible gas sales
Infrastructure charge
Other
Less bad debt expense
Total operating revenues, net
Operating expenses:
Cost of natural gas
Other operating expenses
Total operating expenses
Nonoperating revenues (expenses), net
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$ 163,903,632
12,492,697
6,636,397
(477,960)

2011

89% $ 209,305,325
7
12,414,012
4
5,181,191
—
(431,218)

2010

93% $ 231,154,190
5
12,514,314
2
5,190,877
—
(659,974)

93%
5
2
—

182,554,766

100%

226,469,310

100%

248,199,407

100%

104,975,911
58,413,913

64%
36

148,717,613
63,637,966

70%
30

175,436,541
65,005,230

73%
27

163,389,824

100%

212,355,579

100%

240,441,771

100%

5,108,124

373,740

(52,072)

24,273,066

14,487,471

7,705,564

244,526,467

230,038,996

222,333,432

$ 268,799,533

$ 244,526,467

$ 230,038,996

Revenues from gas sales, net, were down 19.4% in 2012 due to less volumes sold and lower gas costs. Revenues
from gas sales, net, were down 8.8% in 2011 due to less volumes sold and lower gas costs. Revenues from gas
sales, net, were up 1.3% in 2010 due to more volumes sold. The annual revenues for the average residential gas
customer were $512.75 in 2012 compared to $696.44 in 2011 and to $740.88 in 2010.
The District initiated an Infrastructure Replacement Charge effective January 2, 2008. This charge is included in
the annual revenue for the average residential customer stated above for all three years.
Total operating expenses in 2012 were down 23.1% from 2011. In 2012, the cost of natural gas was 29.4% less
than in 2011. In 2012, other operating expenses were 8.2% lower than in 2011 primarily due to reduced
production and distribution costs associated with lower volumes, coupled with a $2.5 million “one-time” expense
accrual recorded in 2011 related to estimated remediation costs at a gas-manufacturing site previously owned by
the District. Total operating expenses in 2011 were down 11.7% from 2010. In 2011, the cost of natural gas was
15.2% less than in 2010. In 2011, other operating expenses were 2.1% lower than in 2010 primarily due to
decreased self-insurance reserves and benefit costs.
The District recorded $4.4 million in other revenue in 2012 associated with the renegotiation in terms of a
long-term gas supply contract with Central Plains Energy Project (CPEP). CPEP is a public body created under
Nebraska Interlocal Law for the purpose of securing long-term, economical, and reliable gas supplies. CPEP
currently has three members: the District, Cedar Falls Utilities, and Hastings Utilities. CPEP has acquired gas
through long-term prepaid gas purchase agreements and delivers gas to its members or customers through
long-term gas supply contracts for specified volumes of gas at market-based pricing less a contractual discount.
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Under the current agreements, the District anticipates taking approximately 90% of the gas acquired in these
transactions under a 20-year gas purchase agreements entered into with CPEP in 2007 and two 30-year gas
purchase agreements, one entered into in 2009 and the other in 2012. Terms of this 2007 gas supply agreement
were renegotiated in 2009 and again in 2012; the gas flows under this agreement will now expire on October 31,
2020. Pursuant to the renegotiation in terms that occurred in 2012, the District received $4.4 million, included in
other revenue, to compensate the District for the reduction in gas deliveries.
Gas Department Summary Financial Position

Plant in service, net
Noncurrent assets
Current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

2012

2011

2010

$

278,296,129
2,000,253
95,585,739

252,587,896
12,884,981
73,432,070

235,707,966
4,070,949
82,110,878

$

375,882,121

338,904,947

321,889,793

$

59,219,878
47,862,710

50,246,434
44,132,046

56,863,183
34,987,614

107,082,588

94,378,480

91,850,797

276,493,145
(7,693,612)

250,584,194
(6,057,727)

221,884,865
8,154,131

268,799,533

244,526,467

230,038,996

375,882,121

338,904,947

321,889,793

Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

$

Gas Department Long-Term Debt Activity
Debt totaled $1,802,984 and $2,003,702 in the Gas Department at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively,
which relates to a low-interest loan obtained from the Nebraska Energy Office and its lending partner; the loan
matures December 15, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 2.5% per annum.
Gas Department Capital Asset Activity
In 2012, construction costs consisted of $14.4 million related to services and meter equipment, approximately
$9.7 million related to the replacement of gas mains, with the balance related to the replacement and upgrade of
general plant.
In 2011, construction costs consisted of $11.8 million related to services and meter equipment, approximately
$7.5 million related to the replacement of gas mains, with the balance related to the replacement and upgrade of
general plant.
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Water Department

Water sales (million gallons)

2012

2011

35,524.9

29,398.3

In 2012, the volume of water sales increased 6,126.6 million gallons, or 20.8%, greater than 2011 due to
increased usage associated with the 2012 drought. In 2011, the volume of water sales decreased 149.5 million
gallons, or 5%, less than 2010 due primarily to fewer industrial customers.

Customers (December 31)

2012

2011

203,230

201,580

The number of customers at the end of 2012 increased 1,650, or 0.8%, over 2011. The number of customers at
the end of 2011 increased 1,089, or 0.5%, over 2010.
Water Department Summary of Results of Operations
2012
Operating revenues:
Water sales
Infrastructure charge
Other
Less bad debt expense
Total operating revenues, net
Operating expenses
Nonoperating expenses net
Change in net assets
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$

92,833,946
13,903,211
3,626,408
(134,410)
110,229,155

2011

84% $
13
3
—
100%

68,983,420
13,479,039
3,358,110
(401,640)
85,418,929

2010

80% $
16
4
—
100%

57,195,201
10,246,342
3,370,874
(261,342)

80%
15
5
—

70,551,075

100%

80,414,733
7,847,778

76,799,701
7,827,469

80,645,396
7,802,498

21,966,644

791,759

(17,896,819)

234,226,810

233,435,051

251,331,870

$ 256,193,454

$ 234,226,810

$ 233,435,051

Operating revenues, net, increased 29.0% in 2012 due to the full-year impact of a water rate increase effectuated
in August 2011, coupled with a 20.8% increase in gallons sold associated with the 2012 drought. Operating
revenues, net, increased 21.1% in 2011 due to higher water rates than in 2010. The annual revenues for the
average residential water customer were $345.05 in 2012 compared to $269.24 in 2011 and to $214.37 in 2010.
Total operating expenses were up 4.7% due primarily to higher purification and distribution costs associated with
increased volumes. Total operating expenses in 2011 were down 4.8% from 2010 due to decreased benefit costs
and water purification costs.
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Water Summary Financial Position

Plant in service, net
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Long-term obligations

2012

2011

2010

$

484,431,587
31,029,040
24,084,984

462,219,453
21,132,831
2,863,311

456,373,134
16,588,558
3,063,121

$

539,545,611

486,215,595

476,024,813

$

34,587,476
248,764,681

33,888,202
218,100,583

33,247,214
209,342,548

283,352,157

251,988,785

242,589,762

291,210,541
171,605
(35,188,692)

281,207,539
171,574
(47,152,303)

269,250,638
171,488
(35,987,075)

256,193,454

234,226,810

233,435,051

539,545,611

486,215,595

476,024,813

Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

$

Water Department Long-Term Debt Activity
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, long-term obligations included a note payable of $220,193 and $278,760,
respectively, at 3% interest per annum to the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality (NDEQ). During
2012 and 2011, the District paid $58,567 and $56,849, respectively, on the note payable to NDEQ. In 2009, the
District entered into an American Recovery and Reinvestment Act loan agreement with the NDEQ for the
construction of a contact basin located near its Platte South Water Treatment Plant; the loan is at a 2% interest
rate per annum. This loan provides for $1,089,775 in loan forgiveness in the form of a grant, at project
completion. The Platte South contact basin project was completed in late 2012, though final proceeds from the
NDEQ were received subsequent to December 31, 2012. At December 31, 2012, the District had received
$5,278,550 of loan funds and paid back $240,000 during 2012 and $120,000 during 2011, resulting in an
outstanding loan balance at December 31, 2012 and 2011 of $4,918,550 and $5,158,550 respectively. An
additional $614,116 was received subsequent to December 31, 2012, of which $518,512 related to loan funds,
with the remaining $95,604 treated as a grant. Upon finalization of the loan schedule in early 2013, the District
had received $5,797,062 of loan funds, and principal forgiveness of $1,089,775, in the form of a grant.
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the District’s long-term debt included $86,005,000 and $88,990,000,
respectively, in Series 2006A bonds outstanding. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the District’s long-term debt
included $85,675,000 and $88,925,000, respectively, of Series 2006B revenue bonds outstanding. During 2012
and 2011, respectively, the District made principal payments of $6,235,000 and $6,465,000 toward its
outstanding Series 2006A and 2006B water revenue bonds.
On December 17, 2012, the District issued Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012 for a par value of $40,745,000; the
first principal payment is due December 15, 2013. Proceeds from the bonds will be used to finance a portion of
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the costs of improvements to the District’s Water System including multiple projects undertaken to upgrade the
District’s Platte South Plant and Florence Plant in part to comply with current regulatory requirements.
Water Department Long-Term Debt Covenant Compliance
2006A Series Bonds and 2006B Series Bonds
The District was in compliance with the provisions of the Series 2006A and 2006B water revenue bonds
covenants at December 31, 2012 and 2011; the District was not in compliance at December 31, 2010, as noted in
the chart below. The 2006A and 2006B water revenue bonds covenants require charges and assessments
collected in each fiscal year to be greater than the sum of (1) current expenses, (2) 120% of average annual debt
service of the revenue bonds, and (3) 100% of any other unpaid long-term obligations and any other indebtedness
as they become due. Charges and assessments exceeded amounts required by covenants by approximately
$32 million and $10 million for 2012 and 2011, respectively. Please see the chart below for debt service coverage
ratio information:

Debt service coverage ratios

2012

2011

2010

3.62x

1.91x

0.67x

Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012
The District was in compliance with the provisions of the Water Revenue Series 2012 bonds covenants at
December 31, 2012. Relative to this bond offering, the District covenants that it will fix, establish, and maintain
rates or charges for water, services, or facilities supplied or furnished by the District that will provide an amount
sufficient to pay current expenses and to generate net revenue at least equal to the sum of: (a) 120% of the
amount equal to the average principal and interest requirements on the bonds, including any parity revenue
bonds, then outstanding; and (b) 100% of the amount required to pay any other unpaid long term obligations
(excluding current expenses) and any other unpaid indebtedness of the District (including any amounts required
to be accumulated and maintained as reserves therefore) that are payable from system revenues, as the same shall
become due. Charges and assessments were approximately $28 million more than required under the covenants
for 2012. Please see the chart below for debt service coverage ratio information:

2012
Debt service coverage ratios

2.98x

Water Department Capital Asset Activity
Significant projects in 2012 and 2011 are as follows:


Significant 2012 construction expenditures for projects completed or in process included:
1)

Platte South water treatment plant – Equalization Basin and new discharge pipelines to Missouri
River to discontinue discharge of lime residuals to Platte River: $7.2 million;

2)

Florence water treatment plant – Phase 1 improvements (Carbon dioxide feed facilities, improved
chemical mixing, and additional water quality monitoring): $5.3 million;
6
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3)

Florence water treatment plant – electrical upgrades/improvements: $2.9 million; and

4)

Florence water treatment plant – new surge and backwash tank: $2.1 million.

Significant 2011 construction expenditures for projects completed or in process included:
1)

Platte South water treatment plant – Equalization Basin and new discharge pipelines to Missouri
River to discontinue discharge of lime residuals to Platte River: $2.9 million;

2)

Florence River wall repair $.8 million; and

3)

Florence water treatment plant – Phase 1 improvements (Carbon dioxide feed facilities, improved
chemical mixing and additional water quality monitoring): $.7 million.

Contact Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the President of the District at 1723 Harney Street, Omaha, Nebraska 68102.
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KPMG LLP
Suite 1501
222 South 15th Street
Omaha, NE 68102-1610
Suite 1600
233 South 13th Street
Lincoln, NE 68508-2041

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Metropolitan Utilities District:
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and each major fund
of the Metropolitan Utilities District (the District), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and each major fund of the Metropolitan
Utilities District, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the respective changes in financial position, and
cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis and
schedules of funding progress on pages 1–7 and 37 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary and Other Information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying other information on pages 40 – 48 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The other information on pages 40 - 48 have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 19, 2013
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Omaha, Nebraska
March 19, 2013
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METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2012 and 2011
2012
Assets
Capital assets:
Utility plant in service
Less accumulated depreciation

$

Construction in progress
Net capital assets
Noncurrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted
Other noncurrent assets
Interdepartmental note receivable
Total noncurrent assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted
Investments
Interdepartmental note receivable
Accounts receivable – customers and others,
less allowance for doubtful accounts
Interdepartmental receivable
Natural gas in storage
Propane in storage
Materials and supplies
Construction materials
Prepayments
Total current assets
Total assets

$

Gas
Department

Water
Department

411,660,252
147,154,064

617,264,748
157,905,420

264,506,188
13,789,941

2011
Total

Gas
Department

Water
Department

—
—

1,028,925,000
305,059,484

389,074,373
142,293,563

587,133,110
149,191,489

—
—

976,207,483
291,485,052

459,359,328

—

723,865,516

246,780,810

437,941,621

—

684,722,431

25,072,259

—

38,862,200

5,807,086

24,277,832

—

30,084,918

278,296,129

484,431,587

—

762,727,716

252,587,896

462,219,453

—

714,807,349

300,636
1,699,617
—

21,478,345
2,606,639
—

—
—
—

21,778,981
4,306,256
—

300,581
2,200,100
10,384,300

171,574
2,691,737
—

—
—
(10,384,300)

472,155
4,891,837
—

2,000,253

24,084,984

—

26,085,237

12,884,981

2,863,311

(10,384,300)

5,363,992

48,099,870
—
—
4,961,503

274,040
5,948,475
—
—

—
—
—
(4,961,503)

48,373,910
5,948,475
—
—

10,105,315
—
—
9,000,000

595,575
3,084,295
—
—

—
—
—
(9,000,000)

10,700,890
3,084,295
—
—

22,055,668
—
10,939,944
3,203,358
3,354,289
2,772,419
198,688

19,680,444
1,654,199
—
—
2,359,794
854,329
257,759

—
(1,654,199)
—
—
—
—
—

41,736,112
—
10,939,944
3,203,358
5,714,083
3,626,748
456,447

27,384,145
54,125
17,937,778
3,216,783
3,041,299
2,507,459
185,166

13,604,276
—
—
—
2,867,992
736,991
243,702

(35,250)
(54,125)
—
—
—
—
—

40,953,171
—
17,937,778
3,216,783
5,909,291
3,244,450
428,868

95,585,739

31,029,040

(6,615,702)

119,999,077

73,432,070

21,132,831

(9,089,375)

85,475,526

375,882,121

539,545,611

(6,615,702)

908,812,030

338,904,947

486,215,595

(19,473,675)

805,646,867

Eliminations

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Eliminations

Total

2012
Gas
Department

Liabilities and Net Position
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Environmental
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total noncurrent liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Customer advances for construction
Interdepartmental payable
Sewer fee collection due municipalities
Statutory payment due municipalities
Other accrued expenses
Current installments of long-term debt
Interdepartmental loan
Accrued interest
Self-insured risks
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total liabilities and net position

$

2011
Eliminations

Total

291,210,541

—

567,703,686

—
(7,693,612)

171,605
(35,188,692)

—
—

171,605
(42,882,304)

268,799,533

256,193,454

—

1,596,969
—
261,313
—
2,320,312
40,842,371
2,841,745

214,693,377
—
—
—
1,830,997
32,229,400
10,907

47,862,710

248,764,681

34,225,013
18,197,126
61,930
1,654,199
—
762,824
2,672,752
206,015
—
—
1,440,019

5,436,072
905,574
4,325,679
—
5,616,060
462,416
2,898,135
7,336,311
4,961,503
740,554
1,905,172

59,219,878

Gas
Department

Eliminations

Total

—

531,791,733

—
(6,057,727)

171,574
(47,152,303)

—
—

171,574
(53,210,030)

524,992,987

244,526,467

234,226,810

—

478,753,277

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

216,290,346
—
261,313
—
4,151,309
73,071,771
2,852,652

1,802,976
—
268,930
2,000,000
2,876,269
34,064,531
3,119,340

178,798,283
10,384,300
—
—
2,250,771
26,656,559
10,670

—
(10,384,300)
—
—
—
—
—

180,601,259
—
268,930
2,000,000
5,127,040
60,721,090
3,130,010

—

296,627,391

44,132,046

218,100,583

(10,384,300)

251,848,329

—
—
—
(1,654,199)
—
—
—
—
(4,961,503)
—
—

39,661,085
19,102,700
4,387,609
—
5,616,060
1,225,240
5,570,887
7,542,326
—
740,554
3,345,191

29,971,640
14,699,799
27,318
—
—
909,929
2,755,438
200,726
—
—
1,681,584

4,542,816
834,700
2,888,963
54,125
4,676,604
398,486
2,938,466
6,533,567
9,000,000
647,155
1,373,320

(35,250)
—
—
(54,125)
—
—
—
—
(9,000,000)
—
—

34,479,206
15,534,499
2,916,281
—
4,676,604
1,308,415
5,693,904
6,734,293
—
647,155
3,054,904

34,587,476

(6,615,702)

87,191,652

50,246,434

33,888,202

(9,089,375)

75,045,261

107,082,588

283,352,157

(6,615,702)

383,819,043

94,378,480

251,988,785

(19,473,675)

326,893,590

375,882,121

539,545,611

(6,615,702)

908,812,030

338,904,947

486,215,595

(19,473,675)

805,646,867

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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250,584,194

Water
Department
281,207,539

$ 276,493,145

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt, excluding current installments
Interdepartmental loan, excluding current installments
Self-insured risks
Remediation obligation
Net pension obligation
Postretirement obligation
Other liabilities and deferred credits

Water
Department

METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
2012

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Less bad debt expense

$

Charges for services, net
Operating expenses:
Cost of natural gas
Operating and maintenance
Depreciation
Payment in lieu of taxes
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Other revenue
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses), net
Change in net assets
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$

Gas
Department

Water
Department

183,032,726
477,960

110,363,565
134,410

182,554,766
104,975,911
45,672,102
10,055,219
2,686,592

2011
Total

Gas
Department

Water
Department

—
—

293,396,291
612,370

226,900,528
431,218

85,823,223
401,640

—
—

312,723,751
832,858

110,229,155

—

292,783,921

226,469,310

85,421,583

—

311,890,893

—
67,372,094
11,619,343
1,423,296

—
—
—
—

104,975,911
113,044,196
21,674,562
4,109,888

148,717,613
50,647,490
9,328,454
3,662,022

—
64,149,495
11,567,594
1,082,612

—
—
—
—

148,717,613
114,796,985
20,896,048
4,744,634

Eliminations

Eliminations

Total

163,389,824

80,414,733

—

243,804,557

212,355,579

76,799,701

—

289,155,280

19,164,942

29,814,422

—

48,979,364

14,113,731

8,621,882

—

22,735,613

791,833
4,415,281
(98,990)

26,594
—
(7,874,372)

34,436
4,415,281
(7,189,371)

504,500
—
(130,760)

25,541
—
(7,855,664)

5,108,124

(7,847,778)

—

(2,739,654)

373,740

(7,830,123)

—

(783,991)
—
783,991

(487,658)
—
487,658

42,383
—
(7,498,766)
(7,456,383)

24,273,066

21,966,644

—

46,239,710

14,487,471

791,759

—

15,279,230

244,526,467

234,226,810

—

478,753,277

230,038,996

233,435,051

—

463,474,047

268,799,533

256,193,454

—

524,992,987

244,526,467

234,226,810

—

478,753,277

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments in lieu of taxes

$

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Other revenue
Interdepartmental loans and advances
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Plant additions
Payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Customer advances
Proceeds received from loans and grants
Interest paid
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities
Sales of investment securities
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

13

2011
Water
Department

Total

206,105,614
(114,817,275)
(31,445,846)
(2,686,592)

104,972,547
(34,214,138)
(24,946,568)
(1,423,296)

311,078,161
(149,031,413)
(56,392,414)
(4,109,888)

216,541,736
(137,589,869)
(31,545,101)
(3,662,022)

81,488,158
(36,847,600)
(24,833,749)
(1,082,612)

298,029,894
(174,437,469)
(56,378,850)
(4,744,634)

57,155,901

44,388,545

101,544,446

43,744,744

18,724,197

62,468,941

4,415,281
16,915,112

—
(16,915,112)

4,415,281
—

—
(12,269,274)

—
12,269,274

—
—

21,330,393

(16,915,112)

4,415,281

(12,269,274)

12,269,274

—

(40,745,473)
(200,718)
—
596,192
—
(149,527)

(40,103,983)
(6,533,567)
43,336,324
6,752,516
—
(7,101,901)

(80,849,456)
(6,734,285)
43,336,324
7,348,708
—
(7,251,428)

(32,470,681)
(196,598)
—
2,169,830
—
(172,930)

(22,223,256)
(6,641,849)
—
4,902,288
104,942
(7,489,235)

(54,693,937)
(6,838,447)
—
7,072,118
104,942
(7,662,165)

(40,499,526)

(3,650,611)

(44,150,137)

(30,670,379)

(31,347,110)

(62,017,489)

—
—
7,842

—
—
26,594

—
—
34,436

(7,998,908)
10,000,000
16,842

(4,491,000)
4,491,000
25,541

(12,489,908)
14,491,000
42,383
2,043,475

26,594

34,436

2,017,934

25,541

23,849,416

61,844,026

2,823,025

(328,098)

2,494,927

10,405,896

3,851,444

14,257,340

7,582,871

4,179,542

11,762,413

$

48,400,506

27,700,860

76,101,366

10,405,896

3,851,444

14,257,340

$

19,164,942

29,814,422

48,979,364

14,113,731

8,621,882

22,735,613

10,055,219
4,816,779

11,619,343
752,310

21,674,562
5,569,089

9,328,454
4,175,956

11,567,594
752,161

20,896,048
4,928,117

5,328,477
6,684,747
500,481
1,362,286
3,547,864
(526,777)
(555,957)
6,777,840

(6,076,169)
176,356
402,884
1,943,369
70,874
532,089
(419,774)
5,572,841

(747,692)
6,861,103
903,365
3,305,655
3,618,738
5,312
(975,731)
12,350,681

13,229,644
784,866
(517,616)
(2,269,510)
(2,187,862)
718,246
32,145
6,336,690

(4,179,378)
(617,409)
136,496
(488,071)
(561,740)
(1,296,178)
7,017
4,781,823

9,050,266
167,457
(381,120)
(2,757,581)
(2,749,602)
(577,932)
39,162
11,118,513

57,155,901

44,388,545

101,544,446

43,744,744

18,724,197

62,468,941

$

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Total

Gas
Department

7,842

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation:
Charged to operations
Charged to other accounts
Cash flows impacted by changes in:
Amounts due from customers and others
Natural gas, propane, materials, supplies, and prepayments
Deferred charges
Accounts payable and other
Customer deposits
Deferred credits and self-insurance
Net pension obligation
Postretirement obligation

2012
Water
Department

37,994,610

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Gas
Department

METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(1)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Nature of Operations
Metropolitan Utilities District (the District), a political subdivision of the State of Nebraska, is a
public utility providing water and gas service to a diversified base of residential, commercial, and
industrial customers. State statutes vest authority to establish rates in the board of directors
(the Board) and provide, among other things, that separate books of account be kept for each utility
department and for the equitable allocation of joint expenses. The Board determines the District’s
rates. The District is not liable for federal and state income taxes. The District pays ad valorem taxes
on real property not used for public purposes. As required by the Enabling Act, the District pays 2%
of its revenue from the retail sales of water within the corporate limits of the City of Omaha to the
City of Omaha, and 2% of its revenues from the retails sales of water within other city and village
corporate limits to those cities and villages. The District is subject to state sales and use tax on
certain labor charges and nearly all material purchases.

(b)

Basis of Presentation
The District’s financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. The District follows the Uniform
System of Accounts as prescribed by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners.
The District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 63,
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position, in 2012. The objective of this statement is to provide guidance for reporting deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial
position. The statement was implemented retroactively and resulted in a change in the presentation of
the balance sheets to what is now referred to as the statements of net position and the term “net
assets” is changed to “net position” throughout the financial statements. The adoption of this
statement did not impact amounts reported in the financial statements.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing gas and water services to the
District’s customers. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for providing gas
and water services. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.
The District’s accounting policies also conform to the requirements for regulated operations.
Accordingly, certain transactions that result from the ratemaking process are recorded that would not
be recorded under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for nonregulated utilities.

(c)

Utility Plant
Utility plant is stated at cost. Cost includes direct charges such as labor, material, and related
overhead. Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction represents interest capitalized on
construction projects not paid for by contributions to the extent such projects are financed by debt.
Interest was not capitalized on Gas Department projects in 2012 and 2011. Interest of $870,767 and
14
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$669,599 was capitalized on Water Department projects in 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Expenditures for ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to operations.
Depreciation of utility plant is computed primarily on the straight-line method over its estimated
useful life. The weighted average composite depreciation rates, expressed as a percentage of the
beginning of the year cost of depreciable plant in service, were:

2012
Water Department
Gas Department

2.1%
3.6

2011
2.1%
3.5

Contributions in aid of construction (CIAC) are reported as contra-fixed assets in accordance with
Uniform Systems of Accounts and as allowed by requirements for regulated operations. For
ratemaking purposes, the District does not recognize such revenues when received; rather CIAC is
included in depreciation expense as such costs are amortized over the estimated lives of the related
utility plant. The credit is being amortized into rates over the depreciable lives of the related plant in
order to offset the earnings effect of these nonexchange transactions.
(d)

Net Position
The net position of the District is broken down into three categories: (1) net investment in capital
assets, (2) restricted for environmental funds, and (3) unrestricted, including unamortized debt issue
costs.


Net investment in capital assets consist of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balance of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.



Restricted for debt service and environmental funds represent net position whose use is
restricted through external constraints imposed by constraints imposed by the Nebraska
Department of Environmental Quality and the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission.



Unrestricted net position consists of net position that do not meet the definition of net
investment in capital assets or restricted for debt service and environmental.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
restricted first, and then unrestricted resources when they are needed.
(e)

Other Noncurrent Assets
Water Department other noncurrent assets consist primarily of debt issuance costs, which are being
amortized on the straight-line method over the life of the bond, unamortized design fees, which are
amortized over the life of the asset, and software licenses, which are amortized over the life of the
related license. The Gas Department also has software licenses, which are being amortized over the
life of the related license.
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(f)

Bond Premium and Discounts
Bond premium and discounts are amortized over the life of the bond using the straight-line method.

(g)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank demand accounts, overnight repurchase
agreements, and short-term liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or less.
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted represents funds held by trustees pursuant to various bond
resolutions, restricted bank accounts required by the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission for
environmental mitigation of wetlands, and a restricted bank account required for funds provided
under the Early Retiree Reinsurance program created by the Affordable Care Act. Additionally, the
Water Department holds approximately $21.3 million in noncurrent “Cash and cash equivalents –
restricted” representing a portion of the proceeds of the Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012 issued in
December 2012. These funds will be expended to improve the District’s Water system in part to
comply with current regulatory requirements.

(h)

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Amounts collected
on accounts receivable are included in net cash provided by operating activities in the statements of
cash flows. The accounts receivable balance also includes an accrual related to unbilled revenues,
which reflects an estimate of revenues earned after meters are read. The allowance for doubtful
accounts is the District’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the District’s
existing accounts receivable. The District determines the allowance based on an analysis of open
accounts and historical write-off experience.

(i)

Inventories
Inventories include natural gas, liquefied natural gas, propane, construction materials, and materials
and supplies. All inventories are carried at weighted average cost.

(j)

Compensated Absences
The District employees earn vacation days at specific rates during their employment. In the event of
termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation time up to a maximum allowed
accumulation of no more than what they are eligible to earn in two years.

(k)

Revenues
The District recognizes operating revenues as they are earned. Revenues earned after meters are read
are estimated and accrued as unbilled revenues at the end of each accounting period. Accounts
receivable include unbilled revenues as follows:

Gas
Water

$

16

2012

2011

17,433,105
1,627,064

13,586,570
941,913
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(l)

Interdepartmental Transactions
Most routine disbursement transactions of the District are paid by the Gas Department, due in part to
the fact that the Gas Department collects virtually all revenue for the District in combined Gas/Water
invoices; balancing between the departments occurs via maintenance of interdepartmental receivable
and payable accounts. At December 31, 2012, the Gas Department reflected a payable to the Water
Department and the Water Department reflected a receivable from the Gas Department of
$1,654,199. At December 31, 2011, the Water Department reflected a payable to the Gas Department
and the Gas Department reflected a receivable from the Water Department of $54,125. The
receivable and payable have been eliminated in the total columns.
During 2011, the Gas Department loaned the Water Department $14,884,300 to fund operations,
which increased the intercompany loan balance to $19,384,300 at December 31, 2011; the
intercompany loan amount increased to a high of $35,484,300 in July 2012. The increase in the
intercompany loan amount during 2012 was primarily due to federally mandated expenditures at the
Florence and Platte South Water Treatment facilities, as addressed in the Reimbursement Resolution
approved at the April 4, 2012 Board meeting; the resolution also addressed the intention of the
District to issue tax-exempt bond anticipation notes or bonds. The loan was paid down to $4,961,503
at December 31, 2012. The loan pay down was funded by using $17.8 million of the $40.7 million in
proceeds received from the December 17, 2012 issuance of the Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012,
with the balance generated from operations; this loan is expected to be paid off in 2013. The note
bears interest at 3.0%. Interest charged on the note was $783,991 and $487,658, respectively, for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011. The debt, interest income, and expense
have been eliminated in the total columns.

(m)

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management of the District to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Significant assumptions include the lives of the utility plant, pension obligation,
other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligation, remediation obligation, estimates used in
determining self-insured risks, estimates for customer volumes in computing unbilled revenues, and
valuation of accounts receivable. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

(n)

Reclassifications
Certain balances from 2011 have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

(o)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. The objective of this statement is to improve
financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity. The requirements of
GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and the related financial reporting
requirements of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments, were amended to better meet user needs
17
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and to address reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those statements. The
guidance is effective for the District for the year ending December 31, 2013. The District is currently
assessing the impact of this statement but does not expect an impact on the financial statements.
In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,
which reclassifies certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, or current period outflows and inflows. The
requirements of this statement are effective for the District for the year ending December 31, 2013.
The District is currently assessing the impact of this statement but expects reclassification of items
previously reported as assets and liabilities.
In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections. The objective of this
statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting
entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of previous pronouncements,
Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The provisions of this statement are effective for the District for
the year ending December 31, 2013. The District does not believe the adoption of this standard will
have an impact on the financial statements.
In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.
The primary objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and
local governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. The
provisions of this statement are effective for the District for the year ending December 31, 2014. The
District is currently assessing the impact of this statement; however, the District does expect the
adoption of this standard to significantly increase the net pension obligation reported in the statement
of net position.
(2)

Deposits and Investments
State Statute 14-2144 R.R.S. authorizes funds of the District to be invested in district bonds, municipal
bonds, warrants, and bonds of sanitary improvement districts, and any other investment that constitutes a
legal investment for the school fund of the State of Nebraska.
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, all of the bank balances were covered by federal depository insurance or
collateralized with securities held by the Federal Reserve Bank.
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(3)

Utility Plant
Utility plant at December 31, 2012 and 2011 is summarized as follows:

2012:
Utility plant in service:
Depreciable
Nondepreciable (land)

Gas
Department

Water
Department

454,944,538
4,552,222

915,422,106
12,774,797

1,370,366,644
17,327,019

459,496,760

928,196,903

1,387,693,663

13,789,941

25,072,259

38,862,200

473,286,701

953,269,162

1,426,555,863

(147,154,064)

(157,905,420)

(305,059,484)

(47,836,508)

(310,932,155)

(358,768,663)

$

278,296,129

484,431,587

762,727,716

$

431,797,079
4,552,222

879,974,668
12,774,797

1,311,771,747
17,327,019

436,349,301

892,749,465

1,329,098,766

5,807,086

24,277,832

30,084,918

442,156,387

917,027,297

1,359,183,684

(142,293,563)

(149,191,489)

(291,485,052)

(47,274,928)

(305,616,355)

(352,891,283)

252,587,896

462,219,453

714,807,349

$

Total
Construction in progress
(nondepreciable)
Less:
Accumulated depreciation
Contributions and grants in
aid of construction
2011:
Utility plant in service:
Depreciable
Nondepreciable (land)
Total
Construction in progress
(nondepreciable)
Less:
Accumulated depreciation
Contributions and grants in
aid of construction
$
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The provision for depreciation expense is as follows:

Charged to depreciation
Charged to operating and
maintenance

$

$

Gas
Department

2012
Water
Department

Total

Gas
Department

2011
Water
Department

Total

10,055,219

11,619,343

21,674,562

9,328,454

11,567,594

20,896,048

4,816,779

752,310

5,569,089

4,175,956

752,161

4,928,117

14,871,998

12,371,653

27,243,651

13,504,410

12,319,755

25,824,165

Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:
Balance,
beginning
of year

Increases

Decreases

Balance,
end
of year

2012:
Gas Department:
Utility plant in service
$ 436,349,301
5,807,086
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation
(142,293,563)
Contributions and grants in
aid of construction
(47,274,928)

29,987,230
39,257,020
(14,871,998)

(6,839,771)
(31,274,165)
10,011,497

459,496,760
13,789,941
(147,154,064)

(1,574,070)

1,012,490

(47,836,508)

$ 252,587,896

52,798,182

(27,089,949)

278,296,129

38,035,563
38,835,236
(12,371,653)

(2,588,125)
(38,040,809)
3,657,722

928,196,903
25,072,259
(157,905,420)

(5,850,888)

535,088

(310,932,155)

58,648,258

(36,436,124)

484,431,587

Water Department:
$ 892,749,465
Utility plant in service
Construction in progress
24,277,832
(149,191,489)
Accumulated depreciation
Contributions and grants in
(305,616,355)
aid of construction
$ 462,219,453
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Balance,
beginning
of year

Increases

Decreases

Balance,
end
of year

2011:
Gas Department:
Utility plant in service
$ 405,053,570
Construction in progress
13,823,101
Accumulated depreciation
(138,104,166)
Contributions and grants in
aid of construction
(45,064,539)

37,364,893
29,392,973
(13,504,410)

(6,069,162)
(37,408,988)
9,315,013

436,349,301
5,807,086
(142,293,563)

(2,321,498)

111,109

(47,274,928)

$ 235,707,966

50,931,958

(34,052,028)

252,587,896

15,939,007
22,054,717
(12,319,755)

(2,066,573)
(15,958,719)
2,940,084

892,749,465
24,277,832
(149,191,489)

(5,382,645)

640,203

(305,616,355)

20,291,324

(14,445,005)

462,219,453

Water Department:
Utility plant in service
$ 878,877,031
Construction in progress
18,181,834
Accumulated depreciation
(139,811,818)
Contributions and grants in
aid of construction
(300,873,913)
$ 456,373,134
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(4)

Long-Term Obligations
Activity in long-term obligations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:
Balance,
beginning
of year

Increases

—
—
88,990,000
(253,778)
88,925,000
2,233,318
278,760
5,158,550
2,003,702

40,745,000
2,591,324
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
4,967
2,985,000
(13,292)
3,250,000
113,244
58,567
240,000
200,718

40,745,000
2,586,357
86,005,000
(240,486)
85,675,000
2,120,074
220,193
4,918,550
1,802,984

1,185,000
—
3,095,000
—
2,750,000
—
60,337
245,974
206,015

60,721,090
5,127,040
3,323,834
2,500,000
3,130,010

15,505,654
9,335,821
1,522,239
—
20,800,032

3,154,973
10,311,552
1,239,569
82,073
21,077,390

73,071,771
4,151,309
3,606,504
2,417,927
2,852,652

—
—
3,345,191
2,417,927
—

$

262,137,526

90,500,070

42,704,761

309,932,835

13,305,444

$

91,880,000
(267,033)
92,500,000
2,346,253
335,609
5,173,607
2,200,300

—
—
—
—
—
104,943
—

2,890,000
(13,255)
3,575,000
112,935
56,849
120,000
196,598

88,990,000
(253,778)
88,925,000
2,233,318
278,760
5,158,550
2,003,702

2,985,000
—
3,250,000
—
58,567
240,000
200,726

49,337,391
5,087,878
4,768,818
—
2,262,958

15,429,763
9,339,162
5,355
2,555,547
21,925,248

4,046,064
9,300,000
1,450,339
55,547
21,058,196

60,721,090
5,127,040
3,323,834
2,500,000
3,130,010

—
—
3,054,904
500,000
—

255,625,781

49,360,018

42,848,273

262,137,526

10,289,197

2012:
Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012 $
Plus unamortized premium
Series 2006A revenue bond
Less unamortized discount
Series 2006B revenue bond
Plus unamortized premium
NDEQ note payable #1
NDEQ note payable #2
CNG promissory note
Other postemployment
benefits
Pension obligation
Self-insured risks
Remediation obligation
Other liabilities and deferred

2011:
Series 2006A revenue bond
Less unamortized discount
Series 2006B revenue bond
Plus unamortized premium
NDEQ note payable #1
NDEQ note payable #2
CNG promissory note
Other postemployment
benefits
Pension obligation
Self-insured risks
Remediation obligation
Other liabilities and deferred

$
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(a)

Notes Payable
Included in long-term debt in the Water Department is a 3% note payable (NDEQ note payable #1)
and a 2% note payable (NDEQ note payable #2) to the Nebraska Department of Environmental
Quality (NDEQ). NDEQ note payable #1 is payable in semiannual installments of $33,247 plus an
administrative fee through December 15, 2016. Note payable requirements to maturity for NDEQ
note payable #1 are as follows:

Principal
2013
2014
2015
2016

Interest

Administrative
fee

Total

$

60,337
62,161
64,039
33,656

6,157
4,333
2,454
519

2,052
1,444
818
173

68,546
67,938
67,311
34,348

$

220,193

13,463

4,487

238,143

NDEQ note payable #2 relates to construction of the Platte South contact basin project. The
District’s loan agreement was based on a budgeted project cost of $7,049,000; if actual project costs
equal budget, the agreement results in a loan amount of $5,959,225 with the NDEQ, and principal
forgiveness of $1,089,775, in the form of a grant.
The Platte South contact basin project was completed in late 2012, with total direct project costs of
$6,886,837. As of December 31, 2012, the District had received $5,278,550 of loan funds. During
2012 and 2011, the District paid back $240,000 and $120,000, respectively, as principal. In
January 2013, the District received the final $518,512 of loan funds. The note payable requirements
to maturity for NDEQ note payable #2 are as follows:

Principal*
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018 – 2031

Interest

Administrative
fee

Total

$

245,974
250,486
255,521
260,657
265,896
4,158,528

107,088
102,576
97,541
92,405
87,166
607,189

53,757
51,287
48,770
46,202
43,583
303,598

406,819
404,349
401,832
399,264
396,645
5,069,315

$

5,437,062

1,093,965

547,197

7,078,224

* Principal balance includes $518,512 of funds received after December 31, 2012 and, as such,
is not reflected in the statement of net position.
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(b)

Water Revenue Bonds
2006A Series Bonds and 2006B Series Bonds
On February 24, 2006, the District issued 2006A Series Bonds for a par value of $100,000,000, and
on October 11, 2006, the District issued 2006B Series Bonds for a par value of $96,000,000. The
remaining outstanding balance, annual installments, and interest rates at December 31, 2012 and
2011 consist of:
Annual
installment

Interest rate

Principal outstanding
2012
2011

Series 2006A bonds:
Serial
Term

4.0% – 4.375%
4.0

$

2,985,000 – 5,910,000
0 – 12,640,000

73,365,000
12,640,000

76,350,000
12,640,000

Series 2006B bonds:
Serial
Term

4.0% – 5.0%
5.0

$

2,675,000 – 5,285,000
0 – 18,225,000

67,450,000
18,225,000

70,700,000
18,225,000

The 2006A Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity on and after December 1,
2016. The 2006B Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity on and after June 1,
2017. Principal and interest payments are as follows:

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018 – 2022
2023 – 2027
2028 – 2032

Principal

Interest

Total

$

5,845,000
6,055,000
6,000,000
6,315,000
6,555,000
37,190,000
46,105,000
57,615,000

7,461,462
7,225,663
6,986,963
6,743,263
6,488,562
28,168,655
19,480,244
7,691,656

13,306,462
13,280,663
12,986,963
13,058,263
13,043,562
65,358,655
65,585,244
65,306,656

$

171,680,000

90,246,468

261,926,468

The indenture, under which the revenue bonds were issued, provides for the creation and
maintenance of certain funds. These cash and investments are classified as restricted on the statement
of net position. The District has pledged future water revenues to repay the 2006A and
2006B Series Bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the Platte West Water
Treatment Plant. The 2006A and 2006B Series Bonds are payable solely from water revenues and
are payable through 2031 and 2032, respectively. Principal and interest paid and total water revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2012 were $13,935,862 and $110,363,565, respectively, and for the
year ended December 31, 2011 were $14,417,693 and $85,820,569, respectively.
At December 31, 2012, the District was in compliance with the provisions of the Series 2006A and
2006B water revenue bonds covenants, which require charges and assessments collected in each
24

(Continued)

METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

fiscal year to be greater than the sum of (1) current expenses, (2) 120% of average annual debt
service of the revenue bonds, and (3) 100% of any other unpaid long-term obligations and any other
indebtedness as they become due. Charges and assessments exceeded amounts required by covenants
by approximately $32 million and $10 million for 2012 and 2011, respectively; funds available for
debt service were equal to 3.6 times average debt service costs in 2012, and 1.9 times average debt
service costs in 2011.
Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012
On December 17, 2012, the District issued Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012 for a par value of
$40,745,000. The balance, annual installments, and interest rates at December 31, 2012 consist of:

Interest rate
Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012:
Serial
Term

Annual
installment

2.000% – 4.000% $ 1,185,000 – 2,335,000
3.0
2,455,000 – 2,865,000

Principal
outstanding
2012
27,470,000
13,275,000

The Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012 are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity on and
after December 15, 2022. Principal and interest payments are as follows:

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018 – 2022
2023 – 2027
2028 – 2032

Principal

Interest

Total

$

1,185,000
1,275,000
1,590,000
1,585,000
1,680,000
9,290,000
10,865,000
13,275,000

1,370,189
1,354,144
1,328,644
1,296,844
1,249,294
5,210,319
3,409,219
1,276,561

2,555,189
2,629,144
2,918,644
2,881,844
2,929,294
14,500,319
14,274,219
14,551,561

$

40,745,000

16,495,214

57,240,214

The indenture, under which the revenue bonds were issued, provides for the creation and
maintenance of certain funds. These cash and investments are classified as restricted on the statement
of net position. The District has pledged future water revenues to repay the Water Revenue Bonds
Series 2012. Proceeds from the bonds will be used to finance a portion of the costs of improvements
to the District’s Water System including multiple projects undertaken to upgrade the District’s Platte
South Plant and Florence Plant in part to comply with current regulatory requirements. The Water
Revenue Bonds Series 2012 are payable solely from water revenues and are payable through 2032.
There were no principal or interest payments on these bonds in 2012; total water revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2012 were $110,363,565.
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The District covenants that it will fix, establish, and maintain rates or charges for water, services, or
facilities supplied or furnished by the District that will provide an amount sufficient to pay current
expenses and to generate net revenue at least equal to the sum of: (a) 120% of the amount equal to
the average principal and interest requirements on the bonds, including any parity revenue bonds,
then Outstanding; and (b) 100% of the amount required to pay any other unpaid long-term
obligations (excluding current expenses) and any other unpaid indebtedness of the District (including
any amounts required to be accumulated and maintained as reserves therefore) that are payable from
system revenues, as the same shall become due. Charges and assessments were approximately
$28 million more than required under the covenants for 2012; funds available for debt service were
equal to 3.0 times average debt service costs in 2012.
(c)

CNG Promissory Note
The District’s Gas Department entered into a Business Loan Agreement on December 16, 2010 for
$2,200,300. This loan is a low-interest loan obtained from the Nebraska Energy Office and its
lending partner. This loan matures December 15, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 2.5%.
Principal and interest payments for the CNG promissory note are as follows:

Principal
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018 – 2020

(5)

Interest

Total

$

206,015
211,295
216,713
221,191
227,969
719,801

43,312
38,032
32,614
28,136
21,358
27,413

249,327
249,327
249,327
249,327
249,327
747,214

$

1,802,984

190,865

1,993,849

Line of Credit
The District’s Gas Department entered into an unsecured line of credit on October 31, 2006 for
$30,000,000. The current Loan Agreement matures May 1, 2013. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
interest rate is 3% and no amounts were outstanding.
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(6)

Other Noncurrent Assets
(a)

Water Department
Included in the Water Department’s other noncurrent assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 is the
following:

2012
Bond issuance costs
Design costs
Software costs and licenses
Other

(b)

2011

$

1,553,427
510,918
184,952
357,342

1,235,642
591,128
401,333
463,634

$

2,606,639

2,691,737

Gas Department
Included in the Gas Department’s other noncurrent assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 is the
following:

2012
Gas recovery
Software costs and licenses
Other
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2011

$

—
118,757
1,580,860

—
1,138,168
1,061,932

$

1,699,617

2,200,100
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(7)

Pension Plan
(a)

Plan Description and Funding Policy
The District sponsors a single-employer defined benefit pension plan (the Plan) for all full-time
employees of the Water and Gas Departments administered by a third-party administrator. The Plan
was established and may be amended by the Board. The Plan provides retirement, disability (in the
form of continued credited service), death, and termination benefits. An employee of the District is
eligible for coverage at the time of employment. Vesting is achieved upon the completion of
five years of service. The District does not issue a separate report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information for the Plan.

As of January 1, 2013, membership
of the Plan consists of the
following:
Active employees
Long-term disability
Terminated vested
Retirees and beneficiaries
receiving benefits

815
21
34
539
1,409

The Plan is not subject to either the minimum funding standards of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 or the maximum funding limitations. Funding standards are actuarially
determined using the Entry Age Normal Cost method. Actuarial reviews are produced on an annual
basis, the most recent was as of January 1, 2013.
The information presented in the notes to the financial statements and required supplementary
information was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. The actuarial
value of assets is calculated using an asset-smoothing method. Valuation information is as follows:

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization period
Remaining amortization period
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increase
Annual postretirement benefit increase
Inflation rate

January 1, 2013
Entry age normal cost method
30 years
30
7.25%
4% to 11%
3%
3.25%
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(b)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation
The District’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Plan for 2012 and 2011 were as
follows:

2012
Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension liability
Adjustment to annual required contribution

$

Annual pension cost
Contributions made
Increase (decrease) in net pension
obligation
Net pension obligation, beginning of year
Net pension obligation, end of year

$

2011

9,231,058
371,710
(266,947)

9,235,199
368,871
(264,908)

9,335,821

9,339,162

10,311,552

9,300,000

(975,731)

39,162

5,127,040

5,087,878

4,151,309

5,127,040

The annual pension costs, the percentage of annual pension cost contributed, and the net pension
obligation are as follows:

Three-year trend information
Annual
Percentage
Net
pension
of APC
pension
cost (APC)
contributed
obligation
Year ended December 31:
2012
2011
2010
(c)

$

9,335,821
9,339,162
8,690,732

110% $
100
99

4,151,309
5,127,040
5,087,878

Contributions
Annual contributions to the Plan for employee members comprise two components:
1) employee contributions equal to 3.76% of base salary, and 2) a District contribution at a level
sufficient so that the District, in total, is funding the annual required contribution (ARC) as per the
Plan’s actuarial valuation.
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(d)

Funding Status and Funding Progress (In Thousands Except Percentages)
Actuarial
value of
assets
(a)

Actuarial valuation date
January 1, 2013
January 1, 2012
January 1, 2011

$

277,702
263,114
252,420

Actuarial
accrued
liability
(AAL)
entry age
(b)
328,045
315,122
304,163

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funded
ratio
(a/b)

50,343
52,008
51,743

Covered
payroll
(c)

85% $
83
83

51,031
51,869
51,484

UAAL as a
percentage
of covered
payroll
((b-a)/c)
99%
100
101

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following
the notes to the financial statements on page 37, present multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.
(8)

Postemployment Benefits
(a)

Plan Description
The District provides certain postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits to eligible
retirees and their spouses in accordance with provisions established by the Board. The plan is a
single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the District. The plan does not issue
separate financial statements.

(b)

Funding Policy
The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and can be amended
by the Board. Contributions are made to the plan based on a pay-as-you-go basis. For the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the following payments were made:

2012
Water retirees
Gas retirees
Total

2011

$

1,887,098
2,401,760

44% $
56

2,145,178
2,621,885

$

4,288,858

$

4,767,063

45%
55

Retirees contributed $170 per month for retiree-only coverage effective April 1, 2012 and the same
amount to cover their spouses.
(c)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of
the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postretirement
Benefits Other than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The District’s annual OPEB cost, the
30
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percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2012 and
2011 are as follows:

Annual OPEB
cost
Fiscal year ended:
December 31, 2012
December 31, 2011
December 31, 2010

$

Annual OPEB%
contributed

15,505,654
15,429,763
16,393,703

20% $
26
19

Net OPEB
obligation
73,071,771
60,721,090
49,337,391

The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for 2012 and 2011,
the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation:

2012
Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

$

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made
Increase in OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation – beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation – end of year

$

2011

15,100,847
2,428,844
(2,024,036)

15,100,847
1,973,496
(1,644,580)

15,505,655

15,429,763

3,154,974

4,046,064

12,350,681

11,383,699

60,721,090

49,337,391

73,071,771

60,721,090

Funded Status and Funding Progress
The funded status of the plan as of January 1, 2011, the date of the last actuarial valuation, is as
follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets
Unfunded actuarial
accrued
liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio
UAL as a percentage of
covered payroll

31

$

177,049,379
—

$

177,049,379
—%
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(d)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial valuations on an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan member
to that point. The actuarial methods used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with
the long-term perspective of the calculations. In the January 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the unit
credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% projected
investment rate of return and an annual healthcare cost trend of 8.50% initially, reduced by periodic
decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0% after seven years. Both rates include a 3.0% inflation
assumption. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years as a level
percent of payroll.

(9)

Self-Insured Risks
The District is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts, theft of and destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, and natural disasters. In addition, the District is exposed to risks of loss due to injuries to, and
illnesses of, its employees. The District provides its employees with two health insurance options, both of
which are primarily self-insured, a Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) and a preferred provider
Organization (PPO). The District utilizes an “Administrative Services Only” contract under which the
District reimburses the HMO for actual claims paid, a monthly administrative fee, and stop-loss protection
for individual claims. Individual stop-loss coverage is effective when annual individual claims exceed
$500,000. Similar to the HMO, the District reimburses the PPO for actual claims paid and an
administrative fee. For the PPO plan, the District also pays a monthly fee for stop-loss protection, but for
both individual and aggregate claims in excess of 125% of projected levels. A liability for claims is
recorded in accounts payable, and was $1,459,416 and $1,213,960 at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
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The District carries commercial insurance coverage for auto and property with deductibles ranging from
$500 to $100,000. The District is also self-insured for workers’ compensation and general liability and
does not carry additional commercial coverage. There have been no significant reductions in insurance
coverage in 2012. In 2012, 2011, and 2010, the insurance policies in effect have adequately covered all
settlements of claims against the District. No claims have exceeded the limits of property or liability
insurance in any of the past three years. Liabilities are recorded for these self-insured risks. The liabilities
are based on a combination of loss experience and estimates by the District’s in-house legal department.
Changes in the District’s self-insured risk balances during 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Gas Department
2012
2011

Water Department
2012
2011

Beginning balance
Expenses
Payments

$

1,950,514
208,422
(457,604)

2,104,968
294,215
(448,669)

1,373,320
1,313,817
(781,965)

2,663,850
(288,860)
(1,001,670)

Ending balance

$

1,701,332

1,950,514

1,905,172

1,373,320

(10) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Accounts Receivable Write-offs
The allowance for doubtful accounts provides for the potential write-off of uncollectible account balances.
It is the District’s policy to only write off receivables that are over two years old. During 2012, the Gas
Department and Water Department wrote off receivables totaling $1,036,622 and $343,639, respectively.
During 2011, the Gas Department and Water Department wrote off receivables totaling $1,357,853 and
$286,441, respectively. The allowance consists of the following at December 31:

2012
Water Department
Gas Department

$

797,200
1,784,406

2011
834,592
2,083,562

(11) Commitments
(a)

Central Plains Energy Project (CPEP)
Central Plains Energy Project (CPEP) is a public body created under Nebraska Interlocal Law for the
purpose of securing long-term, economical, and reliable gas supplies. CPEP currently has three
members: the District, Cedar Falls Utilities, and Hastings Utilities, each of which has equal
representation on the board of CPEP. Under an administrative services agreement with CPEP, the
District manages the daily activities of CPEP. CPEP has acquired gas through long-term prepaid gas
purchase agreements and delivers gas to its members or customers through long-term gas supply
contracts for specified volumes of gas at market-based pricing less a contractual discount. Members
or customers are only obligated to pay for gas if, and when, delivered by CPEP. CPEP’s debt is not
an obligation of the District or any other members or customers of CPEP. CPEP has issued
$1.8 billion of gas supply revenue bonds to fund these natural gas prepayment transactions, which
are secured by gas contracts entered into with each project’s members or customers. Under the
current agreements, the District anticipates taking approximately 90% of the gas acquired in these
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transactions under a 20-year gas purchase agreement entered into with CPEP in 2007 and two
30-year gas purchase agreements, one entered into in 2009 and the other in 2012. Terms of this 2007
gas supply agreement were renegotiated in 2009 and again in 2012; the gas flows under this
agreement will now expire on October 31, 2020. Pursuant to the renegotiation in terms that occurred
in 2012, the District received $4.4 million, included in other revenue, to compensate the District for
the reduction in gas deliveries. Audited financial statements of CPEP are available from the District.
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the District owed CPEP $7,286,392 and $4,791,452 for gas
purchases under these agreements. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, billings
from CPEP to the District for services provided under these agreements were $30,345,942 and
$33,651,455, respectively.
The District has contracted to purchase the following volumes of gas from CPEP, through 2042, at a
discount to market-based pricing on a pay-as-you-go basis:

DTH
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018 – 2042

12,720,872
12,720,872
12,722,739
12,791,991
12,697,528
246,640,038
310,294,040

In 2012 and 2011, respectively, the District purchased 10,867,331 DTH and 8,819,825 Dth of gas
under these agreements representing 40% and 27.5% of the District’s annual gas requirements.
(b)

Other Gas Supply Agreements
The District has various other gas supply contracts with a variety of suppliers, which consist of
contracts that expire March 31, 2013, October 31, 2013, and March 2014 and are generally renewed
on an annual basis.

(c)

Gas Transportation Agreements
The District has entered into long-term gas transportation agreements with Northern Natural Gas
Company (NNG). The District’s current agreement expires October 31, 2016, and provides
for 198,975 Dth/day of Firm Pipeline Transportation service during the months of
November through March and 139,283 Dth/day of Firm Pipeline Transportation service during the
months of April through October. Per the terms of the agreement, 78% of the transportation volumes
are priced at a discounted rate below NNG’s maximum tariff rate with the remaining 22% priced at
NNG’s maximum tariff rates. The District’s annual Pipeline Demand costs under this agreement,
based on NNG’s current tariff rates, is $11.5 million.
On November 7, 2012, the District’s entered into a twenty (20) year firm transportation agreement
with Northern Natural Gas; the term of the new agreement runs from November 1, 2016 to
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October 31, 2036. Under this agreement, NNG will provide 198,975 Dth/day of firm transportation
service during the months of November through March and 139,283 Dth/day of firm transportation
service during the months of April through October. Per the terms of the agreement, 61% of the
transportation volumes are priced at a discounted rate below NNG’s maximum tariff rate with the
remaining 39% priced at NNG’s maximum tariff rates. The District’s annual pipeline demand costs
under this agreement, based on NNG’s current tariff rates, will be $15 million.
(d)

Construction
At December 31, 2012, the District’s obligation under the uncompleted portion of contracts for plant
facilities and equipment for the Water Department amounted to approximately $11.7 million which
will be financed through operations and the proceeds from the Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012.
For the Gas Department, approximately $1.2 million obligations existed at December 31, 2012. Gas
Department obligations will be financed through operations and the long-term low interest loan
provided by the Nebraska Energy Office and its lending partner.

(12) Contingencies
The most recent collective bargaining agreement between the District and its unionized employees expired
on March 31, 2011, and the parties extended the collective bargaining agreement by mutual agreement
during negotiations. The International Brothers of Electrical Workers, Local 1521 (the Union) filed a
petition in September 2011 with the Commission of Industrial Relations (CIR), seeking to declare the
parties have reached an impasse for a new contract covering 2011. The District filed its answer with the
CIR in October 2011 and subsequent to a hearing, the CIR issued its initial order on October 9, 2012; the
final order was issued on November 29, 2012. Though the CIR order was not implemented at
December 31, 2012, expense accruals of $888,058 and $592,039 were recorded for the Gas Department
and Water Department, respectively. The accrual represents the District’s best estimate of the financial
impact of the CIR order for the period April 1, 2011 through December 31, 2012.
The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Management believes, based on the opinion of legal counsel, that the amount of ultimate liability with
respect to these actions is adequately covered by the District’s accrued liabilities for self-insured risks.
(13) Pollution Remediation
During 2011, the District was identified as a potentially responsible party (PRP) related to a site of a
former manufactured gas plant (the Site). The Site is currently owned by the City of Omaha. This Site was
recently subject to a site investigation by a third party to help the District determine potential options and
costs associated with remediating the Site. In 2011, the District recorded a remediation liability of
$2,500,000, of which $82,073 has been spent, primarily related to developing a remediation plan for the
site; the remaining balance of $2,417,927 is included as a current liability in the accompanying statements
of net position. With the assistance of the aforementioned third party, a detailed remediation plan was
submitted to the State of Nebraska in November 2012; to this point, the District has not received a response
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from the state. In light of the uncertainty associated with the pending approval of the remediation plan, cost
estimates are subject to change in future periods. The District believes there is at least one other potentially
responsible party that may be legally obligated to contribute to the remediation costs at the site and may
pursue recovery from those parties depending on results of the site investigation. The remediation liability
was measured at its expected amount, using the expected cash flow technique.
Although not finalized, remediation will include at a minimum, removal of contaminants to be shipped to
an appropriate landfill, providing fill dirt, monitoring ground water activity, and providing a “cap” of clean
fill dirt. The remediation accrual balance that remains represents the District’s best estimate at
December 31, 2012 and is subject to change pending finalization of remediation plans.
The District has provided Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) with many documents regarding the
past use of the facility. To date, there have been no orders from the EPA requiring the District to do
anything; however, the District is proceeding with the site investigation with plans of applying for the State
of Nebraska’s Voluntary Remediation Program, which the State of Nebraska manages locally on behalf of
the EPA. Acceptance in the voluntary program will eliminate EPA from having to “order” the District to
do anything. The EPA is aware the District is conducting an investigation.
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(Unaudited)
Schedule of Funding Progress – Pension

Actuarial
value of
assets
(a)

Actuarial
valuation
date
1/1/2013
1/1/2012
1/1/2011
1/1/2010
1/1/2009
1/1/2008

$

277,702
263,114
252,420
241,025
235,349
245,760

Actuarial
accrued
liability
(AAL)
entry age
(b)
328,045
315,122
304,163
291,187
277,524
262,627

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funded
ratio
(a/b)

50,343
52,008
51,743
50,162
42,175
16,867

85% $
83
83
83
85
94

Covered
payroll
(c)
51,031
51,869
51,484
50,782
46,428
43,105

UAAL as a
percentage
of covered
payroll
((b-a)/c)
99%
100
101
99
91
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Schedule of Funding Progress – OPEB
Actuarial
value of
assets
(a)

Actuarial
valuation
date
1/1/2011
1/1/2009
1/1/2008

$

—
—
—

Actuarial
liability
(AL)
(b)
177,049
184,719
160,494

Unfunded
AL
(UAL)
(b – a)
177,049
184,719
160,494

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Funded
ratio
(a/b)
—% $
—
—

Covered
payroll
(c)
52,893
50,782
46,428

UAL as a
percentage
of covered
payroll
((b – a)/c)
335%
364
346

“
KPMG LLP
Suite 1501
222 South 15th Street
Omaha, NE 68102-1610
Suite 1600
233 South 13th Street
Lincoln, NE 68508-2041

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government
Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Metropolitan Utilities District
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, financial statements of the business-type activities and each major fund
of the Metropolitan Utilities District (the District) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the
related notes to the financial statements of the business-type activities and each major fund, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 19, 2013.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of District’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether District’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

The Board of Directors
Metropolitan Utilities District
March 19, 2013
Page 2 of 2
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Omaha, Nebraska
March 19, 2013
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METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Water Department
Schedule of Insurance Coverage
December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)

Coverage

Description

Deductible or
coinsurance amounts

Name of insurer

Expiration
date

Amount of
coverage

Buildings (including contents)

Fire and extended coverage

Affiliated FM Insurance Co.

$100,000 per occurrence

11/1/2013

Boiler policy

Boilers and machinery

Zurich American Insurance Co.

$100,000 deductible

11/1/2013

$

50,000,000

Contractors equipment floater

Construction equipment and
communication equipment

Continental Casualty Co

$40,000 deductible

11/1/2014

27,842,445

Executive automobiles and
nonowner liability

Liability and physical damage

Employers Mutual Casualty Co.

Collision, $500 deductible
Other than collision, $250 deductible

10/22/2013

Data processing equipment

Equipment, media, and extra expense

Hartford Fire Insurance Co.

$5,000 deductible

Travel insurance

All employees and directors while
on a bona fide business trip

Fidelity and other bonds

President

Liability
Medical payments
Uninsured motorist

2/3/2014

Equipment
Media
Extra expense

Reliance Std. Life Ins. Co.

2/7/2014

Aggregate limit
Per person

Davis Insurance Agency

12/1/2013

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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670,500,000

1,000,000
5,000
1,000,000
10,348,088
100,000
75,000
1,500,000
100,000

METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Water Department
Statutory Information Required by Chapter 14,
Section 2145 of the Revised Statutes of Nebraska of 1943
Year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Operating revenues, net
Thousands of gallons of water supplied to mains
Thousands of gallons of water sold

$

110,229,155
37,843,640
35,524,909

Maintenance
Gross additions to utility plant in service, exclusive of land
Land purchased
Depreciation charged to operations and other accounts
Cost per thousand gallons of water sold (schedule A)
Collected for sale and rent of meters, net
Assessments against property for extension of mains
Operating expenses (schedule B)
Average number of employees for the year
Compensation of employees for the year
Direct taxes levied against property at request of District for fire
protection service (in lieu of hydrant rental)
All other facts necessary to give an accurate and comprehensive view
of the cost of maintaining and operating the plant

$

20,888,232
37,932,184
103,379
12,371,653
2.49
102,327
—
80,414,733
373
24,312,037

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule A
METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Water Department
Cost per Thousand Gallons of Water Sold
Year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Operating expenses:
Operations
Maintenance
Depreciation
Provision for statutory payments to municipalities

$

Total operating expenses

46,483,862
20,888,232
11,619,343
1,423,296
80,414,733

Other deductions:
Interest

7,874,372

Total operating expenses and other deductions

$

Thousands of gallons of water sold

88,289,105
35,524,909

Cost per thousand gallons of water sold

$

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule B
METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Water Department
Operating Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Operating expenses:
Operations:
Primary pumping
Purification
Booster pumping
Distribution
Customer accounting
Administrative

$

Total operating

7,968,957
10,429,636
2,492,163
7,596,550
8,914,113
9,082,443
46,483,862

Maintenance:
Primary pumping
Purification
Booster pumping
Distribution

2,652,952
3,855,439
1,671,075
12,708,766

Total maintenance

20,888,232

Depreciation
Provision for statutory payments to municipalities

11,619,343
1,423,296

Total operating expenses

$

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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80,414,733

METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Gas Department
Schedule of Insurance Coverage
December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)

Description

Coverage

Deductible or
coinsurance amounts

Name of insurer

Expiration
date

Amount of
coverage

Buildings (including contents)

Fire and extended coverage

Affiliated FM Insurance Co.

$100,000 per occurrence

11/1/2013

Boiler policy

Boilers and machinery

Zurich American Insurance Co.

$100,000 deductible

11/1/2013

50,000,000

Contractors equipment floater

Construction equipment and
communication equipment

Continental Casualty Co

$40,000 deductible

1/1/2014

27,842,445

Executive automobiles and
nonowner liability

Liability and physical damage

Employers Mutual Casualty Co.

Collision, $500 deductible
Other than collision, $250 deductible

Travel insurance

All employees and directors while on
a bona fide business trip

Reliance Std. Life Ins. Co.

Auto fleet

Physical damage – specified perils

Harleysville Insurance Co.

Data processing equipment

Equipment, media, and extra expense

LNG plant

10/22/2013

$

670,500,000

Liability
Medical payments
Uninsured motorist

1,000,000
5,000
1,000,000

2/7/2013

Aggregate limit
Per person

1,500,000
200,000

Actual cash value, $1,000 deductible

4/1/2013

Per unit per accident
Per location per accident

120,000
4,200,000

Hartford Fire Insurance Co.

$5,000 deductible

2/3/2014

Equipment
Media
Extra expense

10,348,088
100,000
75,000

LNG plant and contents

Ace American Insurance Co.

$250,000 deductible

12/1/2013

Plant
Contents

38,300,000
5,500,000

Propane caverns

Two caverns – special cause of loss,
including earthquake and flood

Ace American Insurance Co.

$250,000 deductible\inc. earthquake

12/1/2013

Caverns
Contents

16,400,000
12,200,000

Fidelity and other bonds

General manager’s

Davis Insurance Agency

12/1/2013

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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100,000

METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Gas Department
Statutory Information Required by Chapter 14,
Section 2145 of the Revised Statutes of Nebraska of 1943
Year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Operating revenues, net
Dekatherms of gas delivered to mains
Dekatherms of gas sold

$

182,554,766
27,623,932
27,627,535

Maintenance
Gross additions to utility plant in service
Depreciation charged to operations and other accounts
Cost per thousand cubic feet of gas sold (schedule A)
Collected for sale and rent of meters
Assessments against property for extension of mains
Operating expenses (schedule B)
Average number of employees for the year
Compensation of employees for the year
Direct taxes levied against property at request of District
All other facts necessary to give an accurate and comprehensive view
of the cost of maintaining and operating the plant

$

12,255,645
29,987,232
14,871,998
5.91
—
—
163,389,824
478
30,809,176
—

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule A
METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Gas Department
Cost per Thousand Cubic Feet of Gas Sold
Year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Operating expenses:
Natural gas
Operations
Maintenance
Depreciation
Provision for statutory payments to municipalities
Total operating expenses

$

104,975,911
33,416,457
12,255,645
10,055,219
2,686,592

$

163,389,824

Thousands of cubic feet of gas sold

27,627,535

Cost per thousand cubic feet of gas sold

$

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule B
METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Gas Department
Operating Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Operating expenses:
Natural gas

$

Operations:
Production
Distribution
Customer accounting
Marketing
Administrative

104,975,911
2,292,132
9,186,926
11,083,902
1,255,454
9,598,043

Total operations

33,416,457

Maintenance:
Production
Distribution

2,787,610
9,468,035

Total maintenance

12,255,645

Depreciation
Provision for statutory payments to municipalities

10,055,219
2,686,592

Total operating expenses

$

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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163,389,824

